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MINUTES FOR AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD ON THURSDAY 27 MAY 2021 AT 4:00PM

1. DECLARATION OF OPENING

The Presiding Member, Cr Patrick Hill, declared the Committee Meeting open at
4:00pm.

2. RECORD OF ATTENDANCE

21 PRESENT

Cr P Hill Member

Cr S Weldon Member

Cr R Weldon Member

Cr J Carmody Member

Cr G Buckmaster Member

Mr P Naylor Chief Executive Officer

Mr P Marshall Deputy Chief Executive Officer

2.2 APOLOGIES
Cr R Ryles Member

2.3 LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Cr R Prentice Member

2.4 VISITORS

RSM Australia Pty Ltd & Office of the Auditor General via Teams
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3. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

3.1 MINUTES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 25 MARCH 2021

ATTACHMENT
ARC270521.3.1.A Minutes of Audit and Risk Committee Meeting 25 March 2021

RESOLUTION COUNCIL DECISION/PROCEDURAL MOTION

movep: Cr S Weldon SECONDED: Cr G Buckmaster

That the Minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee Meeting (Attachment
ARC270521.3.1.A) held on 27 May 2021, be confirmed as a true and
accurate record of proceedings.

CARRIED 5/0

ARC270521 Confirmed Minutes
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4, REPORTS OF COMMITTEE AND OFFICERS

4.1 AUDIT CLOSING REPORT
SUBMISSION TO: Audit and Risk Committee Meeting of Council,

27 May 2021

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST: The author has no financial interest in this matter
OWNER/APPLICANT: Not applicable
AUTHOR: Phil Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive Officer
SENIOR OFFICER: Peter Naylor, Chief Executive Officer
PREVIOUS MEETING REFERENCE: Not Applicable
ATTACHMENT

ARC270521.4.1.A Draft Annual Financial Statements
ARC270521.4.1.B Closing Report for year ended 30 June 2020

RESOLUTION COUNCIL DECISION/PROCEDURAL MOTION

movep: Cr G Buckmaster seconoep: Cr R Weldon

1. That the Audit and Risk Committee recommends to the Council the
endorsement of the Audit Report compiled by RSM Australia Pty Ltd &
Office of the Auditor General for the Shire of Laverton for the year ending
30 June 2020

CARRIED 5/0

ARC270521 Confirmed Minutes
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON

FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS
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COMMUNITY VISION

The Shire will endeavour to provide the community services and facilities to meet the needs
of the members of the community and enable them to enjoy a pleasant and healthy way
of life.

Principal place of business:
9 MacPherson Place

PO Box 42

Laverton WA 6440
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON
FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Local Government Act 1995
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996

STATEMENT BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The attached financial report of the Shire of Laverton for the financial year ended

30 June 2020 is based on proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial position
of the Shire of Laverton at 30 June 2020 and the results of the operations for the

financial year then ended in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995 and, to the extent
that they are not inconsistent with the Act, the Australian Accounting Standards.

Signed on the day of 2021

Chief Executive Officer

Peter Naylor
Name of Chief Executive Officer
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 3 of 57
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BY NATURE OR TYPE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
2020 2020 2019
NOTE Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $
Revenue
Rates 22(a) 5,303,425 5,386,900 4,648,007
Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 2(a) 6,491,031 2,665,090 6,431,616
Fees and charges 2(a) 787,812 630,450 573,456
Interest earnings 2(a) 82,434 120,200 168,542
Other revenue 2(a) 260,871 542,433 496,739
12,925,573 9,345,073 12,318,360
Expenses
Employee costs (3,997,268) (4,465,315) (3,628,460)
Materials and contracts (4,826,017) (6,695,962) (6,494,122)
Utility charges (334,447) (309,300) (280,611)
Depreciation on non-current assets 9(d) (2,890,565) (2,579,495) (2,512,865)
Interest expenses 2(b) (55,967) (54,335) (54,034)
Insurance expenses (126,703) (1569,672) (118,195)
Other expenditure (183,618) (392,119) (123,712)
(12,414,585) (14,656,198)  (13,211,999)
510,988 (5,311,125) (893,639)
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 2(a) 6,057,266 5,729,805 9,036,541
Profit on asset disposals 9(a) 20,364 135,000 22,673
(Loss) on asset disposals 9(a) (20,262) 0 (1,610,255)
Impairment of Plant and Equipment 7(a) (890,471) 0 0
(Loss) on revaluation of land and buildings 7(a) (643,796) 0 0
(Loss) on revaluation of Other infrastructure 8(a) (423,088) 0 0
4,100,013 5,864,805 7,448,959
Net result for the period 4,611,001 553,680 6,555,320
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation surplus 11 673,738 0 0
Total other comprehensive income for the period 673,738 0 0
Total comprehensive income for the period 5,284,739 553,680 6,555,320

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2020 2020 2019
NOTE Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $

Revenue 2(a)
Governance 22,952 100 170
General purpose funding 7,895,309 6,636,800 7,160,444
Law, order, public safety 16,144 12,283 9,468
Health 4,138 3,500 104,574
Education and welfare 289,121 245107 267,098
Housing 94,704 50,000 142,338
Community amenities 139,426 141,050 136,431
Recreation and culture 100,540 74,600 67,960
Transport 3,769,941 1,661,000 3,805,429
Economic services 366,506 415,133 387,324
Other property and services 226,792 105,500 237,124
12,925,573 9,345,073 12,318,360

Expenses 2(b)
Governance ) (570,883) (666,337) (477,165)
General purpose funding (515,126) (715,528) (402,875)
Law, order, public safety (239,982) (308,707) (272,798)
Health (316,988) (356,176) (293,038)
Education and welfare (542,454) (693,692) (578,767)
Housing (74,273) (70,785) (92,157)
Community amenities (590,446) (623,366) (555,192)
Recreation and culture (1,296,065)  (1,292,612) (924,748)
Transport (7,267,062) (8,387,857)  (8,394,175)
Economic services (1,145,868)  (1,457,097) (1,227,864)
Other property and services 200,529 (29,706) 60,814
(12,358,618) (14,601,863) (13,157,965)

Finance Costs 2(b)
General purpose funding (49) (6,000) (1,423)
Housing (22,757) (20,600) (23,486)
Recreation and culture (19,101) (15,630) (11,623)
Economic services (14,060) (12,105) (17,502)
(55,967) (54,335) (54,034)
510,988  (5,311,125) (893,639)
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 2(a) 6,057,266 5,729,805 9,036,541
Profit on disposal of assets 9(a) 20,364 135,000 22,673
(Loss) on disposal of assets 9(a) (20,262) 0 (1,610,255)
Impairment of Plant & Equipment 7(a) (890,471) 0 0
(Loss) on revaluation of land and buildings 7(a) (643,796) 0 0
(Loss) on revaluation of Other infrastructure 8(a) (423,088) 0 0
4,100,013 5,864,805 7,448,959
Net result for the period 4,611,001 553,680 6,555,320

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Changes in asset revaluation surplus 11 673,738 0 0
Total other comprehensive income for the period 673,738 0 0
Total comprehensive income for the period 5,284,739 553,680 6,555,320

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 5 of 57

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 2020 2019
$ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 2,881,341 3,936,574
Trade and other receivables 5 922,558 1,384,029
Inventories 6 189,717 139,287
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,993,616 5,459,890
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 5 3,687 3,687
Property, plant and equipment 7 13,865,902 14,937,892
Infrastructure 8 139,887,515 133,339,041
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 153,757,104 148,280,620
TOTAL ASSETS 157,750,720 153,740,510
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 12 262,877 849,002
Other liabilities 13 473,209 0
Borrowings 14(a) 226,306 217,277
Employee related provisions 15 470,950 420,699
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,433,342 1,486,978
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 14(a) 929,996 1,156,302
Employee related provisions 15 65,619 39,607
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 995,615 1,195,909
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,428,957 2,682,887
NET ASSETS 155,321,763 151,057,623
EQUITY
Retained surplus 79,370,593 75,616,922
Reserves - cash backed 4 2,099,103 2,262,372
Revaluation surplus 11 73,852,067 73,178,329
TOTAL EQUITY 155,321,763 151,057,623

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Balance as at 1 July 2018
Comprehensive income
Net result for the period

Total comprehensive income

Transfers from reserves
Transfers to reserves

Balance as at 30 June 2019

Change in accounting policy
Restated total equity at 1 July 2019

Comprehensive income
Net result for the period

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Transfers from reserves
Transfers to reserves

Balance as at 30 June 2020

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

Page 6 of 57
RESERVES
RETAINED CASH REVALUATION TOTAL
NOTE SURPLUS BACKED SURPLUS EQUITY
$ $ $ $

68,557,638 2,766,336 73,178,329 144,502,303
6,555,320 0 0 6,555,320
6,555,320 0 0 6,555,320
4 896,761 (896,761) 0 0
4 (392,798) 392,798 0 0
75,616,922 2,262,372 73,178,329 151,057,623
26(b) (1,020,599) 0 0 (1,020,599)
74,596,323 2,262,372 73,178,329 150,037,024
4,611,001 0 0 4,611,001
11 0 0 673,738 673,738
4.611,001 0 673,738 5,284,739
4 195,000 (195,000) 0 0
4 (31,731) 31,731 0 0
79,370,593 2,099,103 73,852,067 155,321,763

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
2020 2020 2019
NOTE Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Rates 5,348,468 5,386,900 4,298,555
Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 6,373,850 2,665,090 7,981,877
Fees and charges 787,812 630,450 573,456
Interest received 82,434 120,200 168,542
Goods and services tax received 1,435,074 0 2,203,828
Other revenue 260,871 542,433 496,739
14,288,509 9,345,073 15,722,997
Payments
Employee costs (3,897,529) (4,465,315) (3,617,266)
Materials and contracts (5,486,048) (6,695,962) (6,530,624)
Utility charges (334,447 (309,300) (280,611)
Interest expenses (55,967) (54,335) (54,034)
Insurance paid (126,703) (159,672) (118,195)
Goods and services tax paid (1,448,855) 0 (2,301,163)
Other expenditure (183,618) (392,119) (123,712)
(11,633,167)  (12,076,703)  (13,025,605)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 16 2,755,342 (2,731,630) 2,697,392
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchase of property, plant & equipment 7(a) (518,120) (1,383,000) (4,452,129)
Payments for construction of infrastructure 8(a) (9,235,089) (5,080,386)  (12,279,687)
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 2(a) 6,057,266 5,729,805 9,036,541
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 9(a) 102,645 135,000 191,500
Net cash provided by (used in)
investment activities (3,593,298) (598,581) (7,503,775)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings 14(b) (217,277) 217,287 (174,616)
Proceeds from new borrowings 14(b) 0 0 800,000
Net cash provided by (used In)
financing activities (217,277) 217,287 625,384
Net increase (decrease) in cash held (1,055,233) (3,112,924) (4,180,999)
Cash at beginning of year 3,936,574 4,026,742 8,117,573
Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year 16 2,881,341 913,818 3,936,574

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



SHIRE OF LAVERTON
RATE SETTING STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net current assets at start of financial year - surplus/(deficit)

Revenue from operating activities (excluding rates)
Governance

General purpose funding
Law, order, public safety
Health

Education and welfare
Housing

Community amenities
Recreation and culture
Transport

Economic services

Other property and services

Expenditure from operating activities
Governance

General purpose funding
Law, order, public safety
Health

Education and welfare
Housing

Community amenities
Recreation and culture
Transport

Economic services

Other property and services

Non-cash amounts excluded from operating activities
Amount attributable to operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions
Proceeds from disposal of assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase and construction of infrastructure
Amount attributable to investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from borrowings

Transfers to reserves (restricted assets)
Transfers from reserves (restricted assets)
Amount attributable to financing activities

Surplus/(deficit) before imposition of general rates
Total amount raised from general rates
Surplus/(deficit) after imposition of general rates

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2020 2020 2019
NOTE Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $
23 (b) 1,327,917 3,960,158 6,942,537
1,327,917 3,960,158 6,942,537
22,952 100 170
2,591,884 1,249,900 2,512,437
16,144 12,283 9,468
4,138 3,500 104,574
289,121 245,107 267,098
94,704 50,000 142,338
139,426 141,050 136,431
100,540 74,600 67,960
3,790,305 1,796,000 3,810,621
366,506 415,133 387,324
226,792 105,500 254,605
7,642,512 4,093,173 7,693,026
(570,883) (666,337) (478,045)
(515,175) (721,528) (404,298)
(239,982) (308,707) (272,798)
(316,988) (356,176) (293,038)
(542,454) (693,692) (582,089)
(97,030) (91,385) (115,643)
(590,446) (623,366) (559,349)
(1,315,166) (1,308,242) (2,457,130)
(7,284,934) (8,387,857) (8,454,257)
(1,159,928) (1,469,202) (1,247,433)
(868,745) (29,706) 41,826
(13,501,731)  (14,656,198)  (14,822,254)
23(a) 4,033,610 2,444,495 4,026,965
(497,692) (4,158,372) 3,840,274
2(a) 6,057,266 5,729,805 9,036,541
9(a) 102,645 135,000 191,500
7(a) (518,120) (1,383,000) (4,452,129)
8(a) (9.235,089) (5,080,386)  (12,279,687)
(3,593,298) (598,581) (7,503,775)
14(b) (217,277) (217,286) (174,616)
14(c) 0 0 800,000
4 (31,731) (800,382) (392,797)
4 195,000 387,721 896,761
(54,008) (629,947) 1,129,348
(4,144,998) (5,386,900) (2,534,153)
22(a) 5,303,425 5,199,900 4,648,007
23(b) 1,158,427 (187,000) 2,113,854

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
Page 8 of 57
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
Page 9 of 57

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial report comprises general purpose financial
statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards (as they apply to local
govermnments and not-for-profit entities) and Interpretations
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and the Local
Government Act 1995 and accompanying regulations.

AMENDMENTS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT (FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT) REGULATIONS 1996

The Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations
1996 1ake precedence over Australian Accounting Standards.
Prior to 1 July 2018, Financial Management Regulation 16
arbitrarily prohibited a local government from recognising as
assets Crown land that is a public thoroughfare, i.e. land

under roads, and land not owned by but under the control or
management of the local government, unless it is a goif course,
showground, racecourse or recreational facility of State or i
regional significance. Consequently. some assets pertaining

to vested land, including land under roads acquired on or

after 1 July 2008. were not recognised in previous financial
reports of the Shire. This was not in accordance with the !
requirements of AASE 1051 Land Under Roads paragraph 15
and AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment paragraph 7.

From 1 July 2019, the Shire has applied AASB 16 Leases
which reguires leases to be included by lessees in the
statement of financial pasition. Also, the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 1996 have been amended
to specify that vested land is a right-of-use asset to be
measured at cost. All right-of-use assets (other than vested
improvements) under zero cost concessionary leases are
measured at zero cost (i.e. not included in the statement of
financial position) rather than at fair value. The exception is
vested improvements on concessionary land leases such as
roads, buildings or other infrastructure which continue to be
reported at fair value, as opposed to the vested land which is
measurad at zero cost. The measurement of vested
improvements at fair value is a departure from AASB 16
which would have required the Shire to measure any

vested improvements at zero cost.

The Shire has accounted for the removal of the vested land
values associated with vested land previously recognised by
removing the land value and associated revaluation reserve as
at 1 July 2019. The comparative year amounts have been
retained as AASB 16 does not require comparatives to be
restafed in the year of transition.

Therefore the departure from AASB 1051 and AASB 16 in
respect of the comparatives for the year ended 30 June 2019
remams.

Accounting policies which have been adoptedin the
preparation of this financial report have been consistently
applied unless stated othenwise. Except for cash flow and
rate setting information, the report has been prepared on
the accrual basis and is hased on historical costs, modified,
where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of
selected non-current assets, financial assets and liabilities.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR APPLICATION IN
FUTURE YEARS
On 1 July 2020 the following new accounting standards are to
be adopted
- AASB'1059 Serwoe Concession Arrangements Grantors
- AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - Materiality.

'AASB 1059 Service Conceséiq_n Aﬂangginéhts: Grantors is

not eXpécled to irﬁpai:t“thefﬂna‘ncial repdrt. ;

Specific |mpacts of AASB 201 8-7 Amendmenls to Australian
Accountmg Standards Ma 'nallty have not been :dennf ed.

cnchLAct:oummG‘E’STiMATESi' f
The preparation of a fi nancral report in .conformity with -
Australian Accountlng Standards requlnes management fo
make ]udgements estlmates and assumptions that effect the
application of pohcnes and reported amoums of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. 73

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances; the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT REPORTING ENTITY

All funds through which the Shire controls rescurces to carry
on its functions have been included in the financial statements
forming part of this financial report.

In the process of reporting on the local govemment as a single
unit, all transactions and balances between those funds (for
example, loans and transfers between funds) have been
eliminated.

|8



SHIRE OF LAVERTON
INDEX OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

Note 4

Note 5

Note 6

Note 7

Note 8

Note 9

Note 10
Note 11
Note 12
Note 13
Note 14
Note 15
Note 16
Note 17
Note 18
Note 19
Note 20
Note 21
Note 22
Note 23
Note 24
Note 25
Note 26
Note 27
Note 28
Note 29
Note 30
Note 31

Basis of Preparation

Revenue and Expenses

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Reserves - Cash backed

Trade and Other Receivables

Inventories

Property, Plant and Equipment

Infrastructure

Fixed Assets

Leases

Revaluation Surplus

Trade and Other Payables

Contract and Other Liabilities

Information on Borrowings

Employee Related Provisions

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Total Assets Classified by Function and Activity
Contingent Liabilities

Capital and Leasing Commitments

Related Party Transactions

Investment in Associate and Joint Arrangements
Rating Information

Rate Setting Statement Information

Financial Risk Management

Events occuring after the end of the Reporting Period
Initial Application of Australian Accounting Standards
Change in Accounting Policies

Trust Funds

Other Significant Accounting Policies
Activities/Programs

Financial Ratios

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

10
11
18
19
20
21
22
24
26
29
30
31
32
33
35
36
37
38
39
40
42
43
46
47
50
51
53

55
56
57

Page 10 of 57

|10



b

b))

uonjoadsul ayy 29) Aj|lenuue
91942 Jeak B UO paseq ssoloe Ajlenba uone|siba) |enbs ue uo paseq aw) ui
919|dwiod uonoadsul 1oy spunjal oN pauoiyoddy aeis Aq jes SuOoN uoiyodoud |enbg  julod sibuis  >oayos Asjes soueldwod suofoadsul |0od
‘Buiweu jo sso|piebal
uoisinoid Jo }s09 92Ud2|| B S aInjeu awes
|enoidde syybu pajeosse  ayy oy uonejsibal Aq ay) buiney ‘Juswabeuew sjenolddy
1o uoneysibal ‘aouag)| ayy 3y} Jo anss| Jo paywi| Jo uole|siba| anssl swi} ul  Jewjue pue Juawdo|ansp /suoljelysibay
40 anss| pue juswAed ug spunjal oN bBulwi uo peseg alels Aq jes SUON 0} Joud juswAed |in4 juiod ojbuig ‘Bujuueld 'buipjing /S92U8oI7
Juswiiwwod |eooudioal SjUBW}IWWOd
spuny suoneblqo  ou yym suoiNguuod pue JoBIu0d
psjjosjuod ale syesse usypy  o|gesrdde JoN Jo idi?oa1 up pani@oal ysed s|qeoidde joN 9|qeoydde JoN ON suoneldoidde |elauag ou Yjm sjuels)
paieys ase syndu payoealq suonebijgo yuswulanob |eao| ay)
se suoljebijqo eouewiopad  swis) Jo 2oud 9ouewsopad Buiodal pue Aq ps|jo13u0d aq 0} S}esse S}8SSE [BIoUBUI-LOU
0} payojew a)ep uoisdwod uojjoesuel)  UYdjew O} SHIoM Jswojsno 9)e|dwoo souojsa|iw paalbe |eloueulj-uou sjgesiubosss  Jo uoOONISUOD By}
Jo/pue sauojsajiw joafoid jo JuswAedal o) Jo ssaiboid By} yum jJuswaaibe jou j08foud Ji uo paseq spuny jo Jo uonyisinboe  Joj suonquUuoD 10
uo paseq poyjew jnding  paywi| suinjay ayj uo paseg lemnuw Aq j85 uonebijqo JoeUOD  19jSuBl} SWIS) paXid awy JanQ Jo uononusuo)  salpisgns 'sjuels
paleys ale sjndul payoealq suonebijgo
Sse suoljebi|qo souewuoped  swws) Jo soud aouewuoylad Buipodal pue S8JIAISS pue uolen|eas
0} payojew ajep uols|dwiod uofjoesues;  ydjew 0} SHI0M lawojsno 9)9|dwoo souoj)sa|iw pasalbe Bujuueld ‘ubisap
lo/pue sauojsa|iw Josfoid o JuswAedals o) Jo ssaiboud 8y} ypm Juswaalbe jou Jo8foud yi uo psseq spuny jo ‘Yoleasal ‘sanjioey SJaWoIsno yim
uo paseq poyjaw Jndjno  pajiwi suinjay 9y} uo paseq leminw Aq 385 uonebijqo JoenuUOD  Isjsuel) swis) paxid awly JanQ Joulw ‘sjusne Ajunwiwo) SJOBIJUOD JuBlD)
Jeah ay) Buunp
SIN220 Juand Allenuue Jlounog Aq paydope
Penssi S| sohjou sajes usYpn - Sjgedldde JoN  jgexe) usypn  [1ouno) Aq pejdopy SuoN sajep juswhed awy JanQ sajey [elauag soley
uoniubooals suinjal aoud aoud uopoesues) SOUBLIBAA suLa) Juswiheq pausijes CERITNEDR Aobajen anuanay
anuaAad Jo Bujwi] Joj suonebijgo  uonsesuesy JO uofjeulwliala [Spunjay/suiniay Ajjeaid4y pue spoob jo ainjeN
Buunsespy Buneso|y suoynebijqo
U3UAM

:SMOJ|0} Se pasiubodal pue anusAal Jo
92IN0S YIBS YYM PRJEIO0SSE SUOIPUOD PUE SWLIS) PSJelo0sSSe 8y} Pue aNusAal JO 80IN0S 8Yj UO Juepuadap S| anusAal Jo uoiiubooay

AJI'TOd NOILINDOO3d INNIATY

SISN3IdX3 ANV INNIATIY 2

020Z INNF 0€ AIANT YVIA IHL HO4d
Ld0d3Y TYIONVNIL IHL 40 1¥Vd ONIWYO4 NV OL SILON

1540 || ebeq NOLY3IAVT 40 J™IHS

V'L'v'1250£204V LNIWHOVLLY



aoud pouad
ybu uolnoesuel) $S8998. 8y} uonjedijdde
$S220B 0) payojew syjuow jo juswdhedsl 0}  ssoioe Ajlenba Allenuue uo uojjod soueApe diysisquiaw
21 JanQ poyjaw JndinQ  pajiwi] suinjey pauoiyoddy [1ounoD Aq psjdopy pasnun 1o punjay uj ||n} ul JuswAed awly JanQ jood pue wWA9 sdiysiaquisiy
aoud
uoljoesuel} shep
ally jo juswAdedals o} Ayjioe} 0} Ajus jo Allenuue 7 ulyym pajjeoued awiy ul Aiua
JO UOISN[OU09 Je 1o Aljus UQ  pajwl suindy bBulwi uo paseg [19unod Aq pajdopy JUBA3 Ji punjay goueApe ul [Iny u] juiod ajbuls e} pue sjjey jo asn  pue any Ajjadoid
Ho-axey/buipue
Jo Buiwp Ajlenuue awl) ul AemunJ pue sajjljioe) sabieyd
juane ainpedsp/buipue] uQ  o|qeodydde JoN  uo Ajnjy paliddy  [1ouno) Aq pajdopy SUON siealle ul Ajyyuopy  julod 8jbuis asn 0} uojssiwied Buipue| podily
papinoid
}palo ji swis) buipes sa)is [esodsiIp je 9oIAa8s S99
Ayjioey 0} Asjus jo Aljenuue Jewuou uo Jo sjeb je awi} ul |esodsip pue Buijpfoas  Anus Juswabeuew
Anjioey o) Ajus uO  9|qedldde JoN Buiwiy uo paseg  [1ouno Aq pajdopy auoON @oueApe uljuswAed juiod s|bulg RUETITLEETESS Y 21Se/\
20INI8S
uo}o09]|09 0} jeuopodold pouad
se pouad Apybiupoy u01399]|02 ay} aouBApE Su01}09||02
pue Apjeam Jejnbai ssoioe Aljenba Ajjlenuue u| siseq [enuue 90IAISS juswabeuewl
uo paseq poyjaw jndino  s|qesidde JoN pauoipoddy Jlouno) Aq pajdopy QUON ue uo juswAhed awiy 1anQ U01303]|00 apisqlay )SEM
uoisinold Jo 102
uoljoadsul  ay) oy uone|siba) Aq
$IN220 jJuane uopdadsul jo Buiwg  pajwij Jo uone|siba uonoadsul awi} ul Ajajeg pue
Joye pasiubooal anuanay  9jgedidde JoN  uo Ay paijddy 2)els Aq 188 auoN o} Joud juswAed n4 juiod 8|buis  YyesH ‘poo- Alojejnbay suopjoadsul 1aYio
uonubooau sulnjal ERING aoud uojjoesueld) SajjuBLIBAA swa) Juswied paijsies EEEINER Aobajen anuanay
anuaaal Jo Bujwiy Joj suonebijqo  uopnoesues Jo uoljeUIWIB}8q /SPUNjay/suINIay Kjlea1dfy pue spoob jo ainjeN
Buunseapy Bupeso|y suoijebijqo
uaym

:sMoJ|0} SE pasiubooal pue anuaAal jo

22IN0S YOED YjM PJEIOOSSE SUONIPUOD PUE SIS} PAJed0SSE SU) PUE SNUSASI JO 80.N0S BU) UO Juepuadap s 8nusAal Jo uoniubooay

ADIT0d NOILINDOD3d ANNIAZFY

S3ISNIJXT ANV INNIAZTA ¢

0Z0Z INNC 0€ A3AN3 JV3IA IHL YO
1¥0d3¥ TVIONVNI4 SHL 40 LHVd ONIWYO4 ANV OL S3LON

1S jo z| abed NOLYIAV1 40 FHIHS

Y'L¥'1250L20dV INJNHOVLLY



£ii

Jawojsno
paaibe sy} yym juswaaibe Juens s|qewleo Joy awiy ul
paaibe s| wieo usypy  S|qeoldde JoN  SI WD Usypn lemnw Aq jo8 SUON  sieaue uljuswhed juiod gjbuig SWIE|D 8oUBINSU|  SjuswasInguiay
Jawojsno
sSpuny 8y} yum juswsaibe sles sa|es }oyol} pue
pajjosjuod ale sjesse usypy  9|geoidde joN Jo idisoa1 up leninw Aq jes ENIN| uo ||y ui JuswAed awy JanQ Burousol| uo suoissiwwon suoIssiwwo)
aoud
uoljoesuel) uoisinoud Jo  Juswaaibe [enjnw
spoob jo juswAedss o} Bujwi uo peseq Aq 19s ‘Ajlenuue spoob }pao Aep G| awy ul 300]S 81jud2 JOJISIA
uo passeq poyjaw ndinQ  paywi| suinjay Ay payiddy  1ouno) Aq pajdopy  Ajney oy punjay uo ‘soueApe ul |nj u| juiod s|buig pue yjsony '[any uoneiny 300]S Jo 3|es
Sylom jo uons|dwod uoisinoud jo sylom ajeaud S90IAS8S
1o aoI1nu8s Jo uoisinoud Buiwiy uo paseq Ajlenuue 2oueApe Swij Ul pue sjuswajejsulsl 'ses) pue spoob Jayjo 1o}
uo paseq poyjow jnding  sjqesljdde joN Aliny payddy  jiouno) Aq psydopy auoN ut inj ul Juswhed juiod 9jbuis Aleiqy| ‘seoinss Aisjewsy  sabieyo pue sea-
uoniubooal suJnjal ao1d a@91d uopoesuen SaljuBLIBA suLia) Juawiey paysnes S30IAIDS Aiobajes anuanay
anuaAad Jo Bujwi | 10j suonebijqo  uonoesuel; J0 uoneulwIsle@ /SPunjay/suiniey Ajjeaidfy pue spoob jo ainjeN
Buunseap Buneosojjy suonebijqo
uaym

LG jo g| abey
V'L'¥'12504208Y INFWHOVLLY

:SMOJ|0} Se pasiubodal pue anusAal Jo

92IN0S Y983 LM PRJeIoosse SUORIpud pue siuia) Pajeloosse au) pUe aNusAal JO 80IN0S 8Y} U0 Juepuadap S| anusAal J0 uoniuBooay

AJIT0d NOILINDOO3N INNIATY

SISNIdX3 ANV INNIATY 2

0Z0Z INNr 0€ A3ANI YVIA FHL ¥O4
1¥0d3¥ TVIONVNIL 3HL 40 Ly¥Vd DNIWYO4 NV OL SILON

NOLYIAVT 40 IHIHS



ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 14 of 57
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES

(@) Grant revenue
Grants, subsidies and contributions are included as both operating and non-operating revenues in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income:

2020 2020 2019
Actual Budget Actual
$ $ S

Operating grants, subsidies and contributions
General purpose funding 2,506,204 1,125,200 2,339,078
Law, order, public safety 5,670 5,483 6,380
Health 0 0 100,283
Education and welfare 284,614 245,107 264,745
Housing 44,489 20,000 108,730
Community amenities 0 60,000 0
Recreation and culture 61,066 951,000 61,338
Transport 3,273,534 167,300 3,227,365
Economic services 128,208 91,000 150,463
Other property and services 187,246 0 173,234

6,491,031 2,665,090 6,431,616
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions
Law, order, public safety 19,573 22,000 0
Recreation and culture 415,374 40,000 1,315,762
Transport 5,595,459 5,630,805 7,720,779
Economic services 26,860 37,000 0

6,057,266 5,729,805 9,036,541
Total grants, subsidies and contributions 12,548,297 8,394,895 15,468,157
Fees and charges
General purpose funding 3,246 4,500 4,561
Law, order, public safety 1,783 6,800 3,088
Health 477 500 590
Housing 50,215 30,000 29,214
Community amenities 139,426 141,050 136,431
Recreation and culture 24,427 14,600 2,609
Transport 475,977 325,000 179,475
Economic services 56,317 96,000 165,271
Other property and services 35,944 12,000 52,217

787,812 630,450 573,456

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

| 14



SHIRE OF LAVERTON
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)

Contracts with customers and transfers

for recognisable non-financial assets
Revenue from contracts with customers and transfers

to enable the acquisition or construction of recognisable
non-financial assets to be controlled by the Shire

was recognised during the year for the following nature
or types of goods or services:

Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions

Revenue from contracts with customers and transfers
to enable the acquisition or construction of recognisable
non-financial assets to be controlled by the Shire

is comprised of:

Transfer intended for acquiring or constructing recognisable non-financial
assets included as a liability at the start of the period.
Other revenue from performance obligations satisfied during the year

Information about receivables, contract assets and contract
liabilities from contracts with customers along with

financial assets and associated liabilities arising from transfers
to enable the acquisition or construction of recognisable

non financial assets is:

Trade and other receivables from contracts with customers
Other liabilities from transfers for recognisable non-financial assets

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

Page 15 of 57

2020 2020 2019
Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $
6,057,266 5,729,805 9,036,541
6,057,266 5,729,805 9,036,541
1,020,599 0 0
5,036,667 5,729,805 9,036,541
6,057,266 5,729,805 9,036,541
285,974 0
(473,209) 0

Impairment of assets associated with contracts with customers are detailed at note 2 (b) under 'Other expenditure'.

Contract liabilities for contracts with customers primarily relate to grants with performance obligations received in advance, for which

revenue is recognised over time as the performance obligations are met.

Information is not provided about remaining performance obligations for contracts with customers that had an original

expected duration of one year or less.
Consideration from contracts with customers is included in the transaction price.

Performance obligations in relation to contract liabilities from transfers for recognisable non financial assets are satisfied

as project milestones are met or completion of construction or acquisition of the asset. All associated performance obligations

are expected to be met over the next 12 months.

|15



ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 16 of 57
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

2020 2020 2019
(a) Revenue (Continued) Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $
Revenue from statutory requirements
Revenue from statutory requirements was recognised during
the year for the following nature or types of goods or services:
General rates 5,303,425 5,199,900 4,648,007
Statutory permits and licences 2,546 0 0
5,305,971 5,199,900 4,648,007
Other revenue
Reimbursements and recoveries 0 542,433 203,706
Other 260,871 0 293,033
260,871 542,433 496,739
Interest earnings
Interest on reserve funds 31,732 40,000 71,036
Rates instalment and penalty interest (refer Note 22(c)) 43,461 40,000 53,773
Other interest earnings 7,241 40,200 43,733
82,434 120,200 168,542

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES




ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 17 of 57
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

2020 2020 2019
(b) Expenses Note Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $

Auditors remuneration
- Audit of the Annual Financial Report 41,000 60,000 38,000
- Other services 0 0 3,842

41,000 60,000 41,842
Interest expenses (finance costs)
Borrowings 14(b) 55,917 48,335 52,611
Interest expense - Other 50 6,000 1,423

55,967 54,335 54,034
Other expenditure
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables from contracts with customers 133,131 0 0
Sundry expenses 50,487 392,119 123,712

183,618 392,119 123,712

|17



ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON - Page 18 of 57
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTE 2020 2019
$ $
Cash at bank and on hand 782,238 999,368
Term deposits 2,099,103 2,937,206
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,881,341 3,936,574
Comprises:
- Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 178,584 (926,270)
- Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,702,757 4,862,844
2,881,341 3,936,574
Restrictions

The following classes of assets have restrictions
imposed by regulations or other externally imposed
requirements which limit or direct the purpose for which
the resources may be used:

- Cash and cash equivalents 2,702,757 4,862,844
2,702,757 4,862,844

The restricted assets are a result of the following specific
purposes to which the assets may be used:

Reserves - cash backed 4 2,099,103 2,262,372
Contract liabilities from contracts with customers 13 473,209 0
Unspent grants, subsidies and contributions 0 2,374,169
Bonds and deposits - from trust 130,445 226,303
Total restricted assets 2,702,757 4,862,844

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Lasn an
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ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 20 of 57
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

6. INVENTORIES 2020 2019
$ $
Current
Fuel and materials 189,717 139,287
189,717 139,287

The following movements in inventories occurred during the year:

Carrying amount at beginning of period 139,287 175,760
Utilisation of inventory 0 (36,473)
Additions to inventory 50,430 0
Carrying amount at end of period 189,717 139,287

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
Page 21 of 57

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current

Rates receivable

Trade and other receivables

GST receivable

Allowance for impairment of receivables
Other receivables - Accrued Income

Non-current
Pensioners' rates and ESL deferred

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from
ratepayers for unpaid rates and service charges and
other amounts due from third parties for goods sold and
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised at original invoice
amount less any allowances for uncollectible amounts
(i.e. impairment). The carrying amount of net trade
receivables is equivalent to fair value as it is due for
settlement within 30 days.

Impairment and risk exposure

Information about the impairment of trade receivabies
and their exposure to credit risk and interest rate risk
can be found in Note 24.

2020 2019
$ $
564,040 609,083
285,974 699,334
192,452 178,671
(133,131) (122,140)
13,223 19,081
922,558 1,384,029
3,687 3,687
3,687 3,687

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement
Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period are classified as
current assets. All other receivables are classified as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are held with the objective to collect
the contractual cashflows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Due to the short term nature of current receivables, their
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their
fair value. Non-current receivables are indexed to
inflation, any difference between the face value and fair
value is considered immaterial.
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

9. FIXED ASSETS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fixed assets
ch class of fixed assets within either plant and equipment or
tructure, is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less.
where app sciation and impairment

logses.

cable. any accumulated d

Initial recognition and measurement between
mandatory revaluation dates

Where multiple individual low value assets are purchased together

as part of a larger asset or collectively forming a larger assat
ceeding the threshold, the individual asssts are recognisad as

one asset and capitalise

in refation to this ‘mu al measurement, cost is determined as the fair
raiue of the as

the acquisition. For assets

onsideration plus costs incidental
ed at zero cost or otherwise
significantly less than fair value, cost is determined as fair value at

ihe date of &

ets consiructed
iudes the cost of all materials used in consiruction,

cquisition. The cost of non-current asse

Individual assets that are land, buildings. infrastructure and
investment properties acquired between initial recognition and the
next revaluation of the asset class in accordancea with the
mandatory measuremant framework, are recognised at cost
and disclosed as being at fair value as management believes cost
approximates fair value. They are subject to subsequent revaluation
at tha next anniversary date in accordance with the ma
measuremant framework.

ndatery

Revaluation
The fair value of land, buildings and infrastructure
is determinad at leas
th the x'e-au(aiory framework. This includes buildings and
infrastructura tems which we

t every five years in accordance

e pre-existing improvements
(i

ested improvements) on vasted land acquired by the Shire.

Atthe and of each period the valuation is reviewed and where
approptiate the fair value is updated to reflect current market
conditions. This process is considered to be in accordance

with Local Gavernment (Financial Management) Regulation 17A (2)

which requires land, buildings, infrastructure,

and vested improvements to be shown at fair value

in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of assets

ited to a revaluation surplus ir

ous incre,

ion surplus directly in equity. All other dec

acognised in profit or |

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
Page 26 of 57

AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - INCONSISTENCY
Land under control prior to 1 July 2019
accordance with the then Local Government (F
tion 18(a)(ii). the Shire was previcus!
by 30 June
government as

ial Management)
1 fo nclude as an
2013), vested Crown Land operated by the local
a golf course. shoy vgmunr
craational facility of State arr

along with cther land.

Land under roads prior to 1 July 2019
In Waestarn Austraiia, most land under roads is "rvm Land, the

responsibility for managing which, is vested in ocal government.

Effective as at 1 July 2008, Council elected not to recognise any
value for land under roads acquired on or before 30 June 2008.
This accords with the treatment avaiable in Austr
I Land Under Roads and th
Financial Management) Regulation 16(a){i) which arbitrarily
prohibited local govermments from recognising such land as
This reguiation has now been deleted.

lian Accounting {

Standard AASB 1 n Local

Government (f

an asset.

ect of tand under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008, as
detailed above. the then Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulation 16(a)(i) prohibited local governments from recognising
such land as an asset.

Whilst such treatment is inconsistent with the requirements of
AASE 1051, Local Government (Financial Managsment)
Regulation 4(2) provides, in the event of such an inconsistancy,
the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations prevail.

Consequently, any land under roads acquired on or after 1 July

2008 was not included as an asset of the Shire.

Land under roads from 1 July 2019
As a result of amendments to the Local Government (Finanacial
Managemeni) Regulations 1996 , effective from 1 July 2019, vested
land, including land under roads, are treated as righi-of-use

assets measurad a

o cost, Therefore, the previous inconsistency

with AASB 1051 in respact of non-recognition of land under roads
acyuired on or after 1 July 2008 has baen ramoy
measurement at zero cost means that land under roads is still not

inciuded in the statement of financial position.

. even though

The Shire has accounted for the removal of the vested and values

associated with vested land prev nousl,/ recognised by removing the

y 2019, The

land value

value in accordance

Sovarnmet { gement) Regulation

17A(Mi
17A(LHW)

-

2 departure from AASE 16 whidl

would have ¢

the viested improvements as

| 26



ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 27 of 57
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

9. FIXED ASSETS

(a) Disposals of Assets

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019
Actual Actual 2020 2020 Budget Budget 2020 2020 Actual Actual 2019 2019
Net Book Sale Actual Actual Net Book Sale Budget Budget Net Book Sale Actual Actual
Value Proceeds Profit Loss Value Proceeds Profit Loss Value Proceeds Profit Loss
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Buildings - non-specialised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 123,027 0 0 (123,027)
Furniture and equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,429 0 0 (16,429)
Plant and equipment 102,543 102,645 20,364  (20,262) 0 135,000 135,000 0 242,976 191,500 22,673 (74,149)
Other infrastructure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,396,650 4] 0 (1.396,650)

102,543 102,645 20,364  (20,262) 0 135,000 135,000 0 1,779,082 191,500 22,673 (1,610,255)

The following assets were disposed of during the year.

2020 2020
Actual Actual 2020 2020

Net Book Sale Actual Actual
Plant and Equipment Value Proceeds Profit Loss
Transport
P336 - Fuso Canter Truck 3,769 15,600 11,831 0
P337 - Ford Ranger Tray Back Utility 12,467 21,000 8,533 0
P300 - Ford Ranger Utility 19,372 1,500 0 (17,872)
Other property and services
P377 - Toyota Landcruiser Wagon 66,935 64,545 0 (2,390)

102,543 102,645 20,364  (20,262)

102,543 102,645 20,364  (20,262)

(b) Fully Depreciated Assets in Use
Nil

(c) Temporarily Idie Assets
Nil

|27



SHIRE OF LAVERTON
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

9. FIXED ASSETS

(d) Depreciation

Buildings - non-specialised
Furniture and equipment
Plant and equipment
Infrastructure - roads
Other infrastructure

Revision of useful lives of plant and equipment

2020 2020 2019
Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $
203,522 425,000 368,274
32,806 32,000 31,858
670,488 320,000 458,342
1,557,544 1,300,995 1,394,448
426,205 501,500 259,943
2,890,565 2,579,495 2,512,865

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
Page 28 of 57

A management review of useful lives of plant and equipment was undertaken, and useful lives amended where necessary.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

De

|28



ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 20.0f67
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

10. LEASES

{a) Right of Use Assets

The Shire did not hold any leases as recognised under AASB 16 as at 30 June 2020.

129
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ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 31 of 57

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

12. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2020 2019
$ $

Current
Sundry creditors 17,107 625,984
Accrued salaries and wages 0 94,254
ATO liabilities - PAYG & GST 176,808 59,078
Bonds and deposits held 46,603 45,368
Other Accrued Income 8,886 11,008
Payroll Creditors 985 985
Other payables 12,488 12,325

262,877 849,002

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Trade and other payables Prepaid rates

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods Prepaid rates are, until the taxable event has occcurred

and services provided to the Shire prior to the end of the (start of the next financial year), refundable at the request
financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Shire of the ratepayer. Rates received in advance are initially
becomes obliged to make future payments in respect recognised as a financial liability. When the taxable event
of the purchase of these goods and services. occurs, the financial liability is extinguished and the Shire
The amounts are unsecured, are recognised as a recognises revenue for the prepaid rates that have not been
current liability and are normally paid within 30 days of refunded.

recognition
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

13. CONTRACT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2020

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
Page 32 of 57

2019

Current

Other liabilities - deferred grant revenue

473,209

Performance obligations from contracts with customers
are expected to be recognised as revenue in accordance
with the following time bands:

Less than 1 year

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

473,209

473,209
473,209

| 32
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ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 34 of 57
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

14. INFORMATION ON BORROWINGS (Continued)

2020 2019
(¢) Undrawn Borrowing Facilities $ $

Credit Standby Arrangements

Bank overdraft limit 500,000 500,000
Bank overdraft at balance date 0 0
Credit card limit 25,000 25,000
Credit card balance at balance date (3,282) (12,078)
Total amount of credit unused 521,718 512,922
Loan facilities

Loan facilities - current 226,306 217,277
Loan facilities - non-current 929,996 1,156,302
Total facilities in use at balance date 1,156,302 1,373,579
Unused loan facilities at balance date 0 0

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AL
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
Page 35 of 57

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

EMPLOYEE RELATED PROVISIONS

Employee Related Provisions

Opening balance at 1 July 2018
Current provisions
Non-current provisions

Additional provision
Amounts used
Balance at 30 June 2020

Comprises
Current
Non-current

Amounts are expected to be settled on the following basis:

Less than 12 months after the reporting date
More than 12 months from reporting date
Expected reimbursements from other WA local governments

Provision for Provision for

Annual Long Service
Leave Leave Total
$ $ $
165,949 254,750 420,699
0 39,607 39,607
165,949 294,357 460,306
208,450 49,223 257,673
(174,205) (7,205) (181,410)
200,194 336,375 536,569
200,194 270,756 470,950
0 65,619 65,619
200,194 336,375 536,569
2020 2019
$ $
57,260 422,048
492,835 38,258
(13,526) 0

536,569 460,306

Timing of the payment of current leave liabilities is difficult to determine as it is dependent on future decisions of employees.
Expected settlement timings are based on information obtained from employees and historical leave trends and assumes no

events will occur to impact on these historical trends.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Provision is made for the Shire's obligations for short-term
employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits are
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render tha
related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the
{(undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the
obligation is settled.

The Shire's obligations for short-term employee benefits
such as wages, salaries and sick leave are recognised as
a part of current frade and other payables in the statement
of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Shire's obligations for employees' annual leave and long
service leave entittements are recognised as provisions

in the statement of financial position

Long-term employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the expected future payments to be made to
employees. Expected future payments incorporate
anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of
service and employee departures and are discounted at

Other long-term employee henefits (Continued)

rates determined by reference to market yields atthe end

of the reporting period on government bonds that have
maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations.
Any remeasurements for changes in assumptions of
obligations for other long-term employee benefits are
recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the
changes occur.

The Shire's obligations for long-term employee benefits are
presented as non-current provisions in its statement of
financial position, except where the Shire does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period, in which case the
obligations are presented as current provisions.

Provisions

Provistons are recognised when the Shire has a present
legal or constructive obligation. as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will result and that outflow can be reliably measured

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the

amounts required to settle the obligation at the ead of the
reporting period.
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ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page:domrst
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
16. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash and cash equivalents,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the reporting period is reconciled to the
related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
2020 2020 2019
Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $
Cash and cash equivalents 2,881,341 913,818 3,936,574
Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided By
Operating Activities to Net Result
Net result 4,611,001 553,680 6,555,320
Non-cash flows in Net result:
Depreciation on non-current assets 2,890,565 2,579,495 2,512,865
(Profit)/loss on sale of asset (102) (135,000) 1,587,582
Impairment of Plant and Equipment 890,471 0 0
Loss on revaluation of fixed assets 1,066,884 0 0
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (85,919) 0 1,022,138
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (50,430) 0 36,473
Increase/(decrease) in payables (586,125) 0 (54,358)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 76,263 0 73,913
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions (6,057,266) (5,729,805) (9,036,541)
Net cash from operating activities 2,755,342 (2,731,630) 2,697,392

| 36



SHIRE OF LAVERTON

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

17. TOTAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

Governance

General purpose funding
Law, order, public safety
Health

Education and welfare
Housing

Community amenities
Recreation and culture
Transport

Economic services
Other property and services
Unallocated

2020 2019
$ $

2,800 552,946
782,238 900,885
75,200 3,553
285,000 328,652
224,800 290,427
2,594,100 3,198,550
925,602 2,365,363
8,499,750 7,033,455
137,159,919 134,121,983
2,478,761 1,996,188
1,516,193 1,056,449
3,206,357 1,892,059
157,750,720 153,740,510

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

Page 37 of 57
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ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 38 of 57

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A potential liability exists for the upgrade/maintenance of the Lake Wells Road as an agreement
exists with Australian Potash Limited to be responsible for the upgrade/maintenance for a period
of five years. At the time of compilation of this report the extent of the liability is limited to the
amount of rates levied on the tenements mentioned in the agreement.

The contingent liability at 30 June 2020 is $1.2 million, contingent on the execution of the
agreement.

|38



ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 39 of 57

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

19. CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS 2020 2019

Capital Expenditure Commitments

Contracted for:

- capital expenditure projects 0 701,425
- plant & equipment purchases 0 46,248
0 747,673

Payable:
0 747,673

- not later than one year

The capital expenditure project outstanding at the end of the previous year represents the contracts
associated with the Community Hub project, runway lighting project, contract to upgrade the
playgroup and old police station, and contracts to upgrade staff housing. This project is now

complete.

[39



SHIRE OF LAVERTON
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Elected Members Remuneration

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
Page 40 of 57

2020 2020 2019
The following fees, expenses and allowances were Actual Budget Actual
paid to council members and/or the President. $ $ $
Meeting fees 93,000 100,000 73,451
President's allowance 24,000 24,000 18,315
Deputy President's allowance 6,000 6,000 4,580
Travelling expenses 7,519 10,000 4,052
130,519 140,000 100,398
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Compensation Disclosure
2020 2019
The total of remuneration paid to KMP of the Actual Actual
Shire during the year are as follows: $ $
Short-term employee benefits 531,149 528,635
Post-employment benefits 82,775 77,554
Other long-term benefits 12,433 12,625
Termination benefits 30,712 0
657,069 618,814

Short-term employee benefits

These amounts include all salary, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded to KMP except
for details in respect to fees and benefits paid to elected members which may be found above.

Post-employment benefits

These amounts are the current-year's estimated cost of providing for the Shire's superannuation

contributions made during the year.

Other long-term benefits
These amounts represent long service benefits accruing during the year.

Termination benefits

These amounts represent termination benefits paid to KMP (Note: may or may not be

applicable in any given year).

| 40



ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 41 of 57

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions with related parties

Transactions between related parties and the Shire are on normal commercial terms and conditions,
no more favourable than those available to other parties, unless otherwise stated.

Councillor Rex Ryles owns a cartage, contract earthworks and plant hire company called
Desert Sands Cartage Contractors which has been paid for earthworks and plant hire during the financial year.

2020 2019
The following transactions occurred with related parties: Actual Actual
$ $
Purchase of goods and services 690,554 0
Amounts payable to related parties:
Trade and other payables 0 84,605

All related party transactions were made in accordance with the Shire's procurement policies.

Related Parties
The Shire's main related parties are as follows:

i. Key management personnel
Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any elected member, are considered key management

personnel.

ii. Other Related Parties
The associate person of KMP was employed by the Shire under normal employment terms

and conditions.

iii. Entities subject to significant influence by the Shire
An entity that has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an
entity, but does not have control over those policies, is an entity which holds significant influence.
Significant influence may be gained by share ownership, statute or agreement.
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SHIRE OF LAVERTON
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

21. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

2020 2019
$ $
(a) Share of joint operations
The Shire together with the Shire of Coolgardie, Dundas, Esperance,
Leonora, Menzies, Ngaanyatjarraku, Ravensthorpe and Wiluna have
a joint venture arrangement with regards to the provision of a
Regional Records Service. The assets included in the joint operation
is the Shire's one tenth share as follows:
Current Assets 7,445 0
Non-Current Assets 75,118 80,615
Total assets 82,563 80,615
Net Assets
82,563 80,615

Net increase(decrease) in share of associate entity's net assets 1,948 (1,812)
- Share of associates profit(loss) from ordinary activities 11,680 4,994
- Share of associates total comprehensive income arising

during the period
Carrying amount at beginning of period 1,793 (3,211)
- Share of associates total comprehensive income arising during

the period 11,680 4,994
Carrying amount at end of period 13,473 1,783

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

safe in o

Page 42 of 57
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ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 45 of 57
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

22. RATING INFORMATION (Continued)

() Interest Charges & Instalments

Instaiment Instalment Unpaid Rates
Date Plan Plan Interest
Instalment Options Due Admin Charge Interest Rate Rate
$ % %
Option One
Single full payment 9/09/2019 11.00%
Option Three
First instalment 9/09/2019 11.00%
Second instalment 11/11/2019 5.00 5.50% 11.00%
Third instalment 13/01/2020 5.00 5.50% 11.00%
Fourth instalment 13/03/2020 5.00 5.50% 11.00%
2020 2020 2019
Actual Budget Actual
$ $ $
Interest on unpaid rates 32,219 25,000 38,735
Interest on instalment plan 11,242 15,000 15,038
Charges on instalment plan 3,060 4,000 4,170
46,521 44,000 57,943
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23. RATE SETTING STATEMENT INFORMATION

(a) Non-cash amounts excluded from operating activities

(b

(c

SHIRE OF LAVERTON

ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

The following non-cash revenue or expenditure has been excluded
from amounts attributable to operating activities within the Rate Setting
Statement in accordance with Financial Managernent Regulation 32.

Adjustments to operating activities
Less: Profit on asset disposals

Movement in pensioner deferred rates (non-current)
Movement in employee benefit provisions (non-current)

Movement in other provisions (non-current)
Add: Loss on disposal of assets

Add: Loss on revaluation of fixed assets
Add: Depreciation on non-current assets

Non cash amounts excluded from operating activities
Surplus/(deficit) after imposition of general rates

The following current assets and liabilities have been excluded
from the net current assets used in the Rate Setting Statement
in accordance with Financial Management Regulation 32 to
agree to the surplus/(deficit) after imposition of general rates.

Adjustments to net current assets
Less: Reserves - cash backed

Add: Current liabilities not expected to be cleared at end of year

- Current portion of borrowings
- Employee benefit provisions
Total adjustments to net current assets

Net current assets used in the Rate Setting Statement

Total current assets
Less: Total current liabilities

Less: Total adjustments to net current assets
Net current assets used in the Rate Setting Statement

Adjustments to current assets and liabilities at 1 July 2019
on application of new accounting standards

Total current assets at 30 June 2019
Total current assets at 1 July 2019

Total current liabilities at 30 June 2019

- Contract liabilities from contracts with customers

Total current liabilities at 1 July 2018

Page 46 of 57
2019/20

2019/20 Budget 2019/20 2018M19
(30 June 2020 (30 June 2020 (1 July 2019 (30 June 2018

Carried Carried Brought Carried

Note Forward) Forward) Forward) Forward

$ $ $ $

9(a) (20,364) (135,000) (22,673) (22,673)
0 0 (2,113) (2,113)
76,263 0 (51,376) (51,376)
0 0 (19,993) (19,993)
9(a) 20,262 0 1,610,255 1,610,255
7(a), 8(a) 1,066,884 0 0 0
9(d) 2,890,565 2,579,495 2,512,865 2,512,865
4,033,610 2,444 495 4,026,965 4,026,965
4 (2,099,103) (2,675,034) (2,262,372) (2,262,372)
14(a) 226,306 217,287 217,277 217,277
470,950 0 420,699 186,037
(1,401,847) (2,457,747) (1,624,396) (1,859,058)
3,993,616 4,819,798 5,459,890 5,459,890
(1,433,342) (2,851,189) (2,507,577) (1,486,978)
(1,401,847) (2,457,747) (1,624,396) (1.859,058)
1,158,427 (489,138) 1,327,917 2,113,854
5,459,890
5,459,890
(1,486,978)
26(b) (1,020,599)
(2,507,577)



ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A

SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page4tof 5T
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note explains the Shire's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Shire’s future financial

performance.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Long term borrowings at variable ~Sensitivity Utilise fixed interest rate borrowings

Market risk - interest rate -
rates analysis

Credit vish Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis  Diversification of bank deposits,
2 receivables, financial assets and  Credit analysis  credit limits. Investment policy

P : — Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lines
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities F——— and borrowing faciliies

The Shire does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance area under policies approved by Council. The finance identifies,
evaluates and manages financial risks in close co-operation with the operating divisions. Council have approved the overall risk
management policy and provide policies on specific areas such as investment policy.

(a) Interest rate risk

Cash and cash equivalents
The Shire's main interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents with variable interest rates, which exposes the Shire

to cash flow interest rate risk. Short term overdraft facilities also have variable interest rates however these are repaid within
12 months, reducing the risk level to minimal.

Excess cash and cash equivalents are invested in fixed interest rate term deposits which do not expose the Shire to cash
flow interest rate risk. Cash and cash equivalents required for working capital are held in variable interest rate accounts

and non-interest bearing accounts. Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents at the 30 June and the weighted average
interest rate across all cash and cash equivalents and term deposits held disclosed as financial assets at amortised cost

are reflected in the table below.

Weighted
Average Carrying Fixed Variable Non Interest
Interest Rate Amounts Interest Rate Interest Rate Bearing
% $ $ $ $
2020
Cash and cash equivalents 0.06% 2,881,341 2,099,103 780,738 1,500
2019
Cash and cash equivalents 0.2297% 3,936,574 2,262,372 1,672,602 1,600
Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income from cash and cash equivalents as a result of changes in
interest rates. 2020 2019
$ $

Impact of a 1% movement in interest rates on profit and loss and equity* 7,807 16,726

* Helding ail other vanables consiant

Borrowings
Borrowings are subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding costs.

The Shire manages this risk by borrowing long term and fixing the interest rate to the situation considered the most
advantageous at the time of negotiation. The Shire does not consider there to be any interest rate risk in relation to borrowings.
Details of interest rates applicable to each borrowing may be found at Note 14(b).
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ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.A
SHIRE OF LAVERTON Page 48 of 57
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Trade and Other Receivables

The Shire's major receivables comprise rates annual charges and user fees and charges. The major risk associated with these
receivables is credit risk - the risk that the debts may not be repaid. The Shire manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt
recovery policies. It also encourages ratepayers to pay rates by the due date through incentives.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of the Shire to recover these debts as a secured charge over
the land, that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. The Shire is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and annual
charges at higher than market rates, which further encourages payment.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for acceptable
collection performance.

The Shire debt collection policy and management of any non-payment of receivables results in an appropriate provision
being made for any debts which are unrecoverable and therefore the Shire does not expect to have any future credit losses
on receivables.

The Shire applies the AASB 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, rates receivable are separated from other
trade receivables due to the difference in payment terms and security for rates receivable.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of rates and fees and charges over a period of 36 months
before 1 July 2019 or 1 July 2020 respectively and the corresponding historical losses experienced within this period.
Historical credit loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors

such as the ability of ratepayers and residents to settle the receivables. The covid-19 pandemic, housing prices and
unemployment rates have been identified as the most relevant factors in repayment rates, and accordingly adjustments are
made to the expected credit loss rate based on these factors. There are no material receivables that have been subject to a
renegotiation of repayment terms.

The loss allowance as at 30 June 2020 was determined as follows for rates receivable:

More than 1 More than 2 More than 3
Current year past due years past due years past due Total
30 June 2020
Rates receivable
Expected credit loss 2.58% 0.00% 0.00% 87.81%
Gross carrying amount 428,729 0 0 138,998 567,727
Loss allowance 11,081 0 0 122,050 133,131
30 June 2019
Rates receivable
Expected credit loss 2.33% 0.00% 0.00% 75.51%
Gross carrying amount 465,363 0 : 0 147,407 612,770
Loss allowance 10,830 0 0 111,310 122,140

The loss allowance as at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 was determined as follows for trade receivables.

More than 30 More than 60 More than 90

Current days past due days past due days past due Total
30 June 2020
Trade and other receivables
Expected credit loss 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Gross carrying amount 261,030 24,944 0 0 285,974
Loss allowance 0 0 0 0 0
30 June 2019
Trade and other receivables
Expected credit loss 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Gross carrying amount 380,852 299,114 16,693 2,736 699,395
Loss allowance 0 0 0 0 0
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Payables and borrowings
Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk - that is the risk that insufficient funds may be on

hand to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due. The Shire manages this risk by monitoring
its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer. Payment terms can
be extended and overdraft facilities drawn down if required and disclosed in note 14 (c).

The contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Shire’s payables and borrowings are set out in the
liquidity table below. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact
of discounting is not significant.

Due Due Due Total
within between after contractual Carrying
1year 1&5years 5years cash flows values
2020 $ $ 5 $ $
Payables 262,877 0 0 262,877 262,877
Borrowings 265,530 768,455 326,819 1,360,804 1,156,302

528,407 768,455 326,819 1,623,681 1,419,179

2019
Payables 849,002 0 0 849,002 849,002
Borrowings 0 653,661 818,840 1,472,501 1,373,579

849,002 653,661 818,840 2,321,503 2,222,581
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25. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

Council did not have any events occurring after the end of the reporting period of consequence.
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26. INITIAL APPLICATION OF AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

During the current year, the Shire adopted all of the new and revised Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations which were compiled, became mandatory and which were applicable to its operations.

(a) AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Shire adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (issued December 2014) on 1 July 2019 resulting in changes in
accounting policies. In accordance with the transition provisions AASB 15, the Shire adopted the new rules retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying these rules recognised on 1 July 2019.

In summary, there were no adjustments made to the amounts recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial application (1 July 2019).
(b) AASB 1058: Income For Not-For-Profit Entities

The Shire adopted AASB 1058 Income for Not-for-Profit Entities (issued December 2016) on 1 July 2019 which will result in changes

in accounting policies. In accordance with the transition provisions AASB 1058, the Shire adopted the new rules retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying AASB 1058 recognised at 1 July 2019. Comparative information for prior reporting periods was
not restated in accordance with AASB 1058 transition requirements.

In applying AASB 1058 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard on 1 July 2019 changes occurred to the
following financial statement line items by application of AASB 1058 as compared to AASB 118: Revenue and AASB 1004:

AASB 118 and

AASB 1004 AASB 1058
carrying amount carrying amount
Note 30 June 2019 Reclassification 01 July 2019
$ $ $
Other liabilities - current
Other liabilities from transfers for recognisable non financial assets 13 0 (1,020,599) (1,020,599)
Adjustment to retained surplus from adoption of AASB 1058 27(b) (1,020,599)

Prepaid rates are, until the taxable event for the rates has occurred, refundable at the request of the ratepayer. Therefore the rates
received in advance gave rise to a financial liability that is within the scope of AASB 9. On 1 July 2019 the prepaid rates were recognised
as a financial asset and a related amount recognised as a financial liability and no income recognised by the Shire. When the taxable event
occurred, the financial liability was extinguished and the Shire recognised income for the prepaid rates that have not been refunded.

Assets that were acquired for consideration, that were significantly less than fair value principally to enable the Shire to further its objectives,

may have been measured on initial recognition under other Australian Accounting Standards at a cost that was significantly less than fair
value. Such assets are not required to be remeasured at fair value.
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26. INITIAL APPLICATION OF AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The table below provides details of the amount by which each financial statement line item is affected in the current reporting period

by the application of this Standard as compared to AASB 118 and 1004 and related Interpretations that were in effect before the change.

Note
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Revenue
Rates 22(a)
Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 2(a)
Fees and charges 2(a)
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 2(a)
Net result
Statement of Financial Position
Trade and other payables 12
Contract and other liabilities 13

Net assets

Statement of Changes in Equity
Net result
Retained surplus

2020
$

Adjustment due
As reported to application of
under AASB 15  AASB 15 and

2020

Compared to
AASB 118 and

and AASB 1058  AASB 1058 AASB 1004
5,303,425 0 5,303,425
6,491,031 473,209 6,964,240

787,812 0 787,812
6,057,266 0 6,057,266
4,611,001 473,209 5,084,210

262,877 0 262,877

473,209 (473,209) 0

155,321,763 (473,209) 154,848,554
4,611,001 473,209 5,084,210
79,370,593 473,209 79,843,802

Refer to Note 2(a) for new revenue recognition accounting policies as a result of the application of AASB 15 and AASB 1058.

(c) AASB 16: Leases

The Shire adopted AASB 16 retrospectively from 1 July 2019 which resulted in changes in accounting policies.

The Shire had no leases in place which required recognition on application of AASB 16.
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27. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Change in Accounting Palicies due to regulation changes

Effective 6 November 2020, Local G t (Fir ial M: ) Regulation 16 was deleted and Local G (Financial M:

g

Regulation 17A was amended with retrospective application. The changes were effective for financial years ending on or after 30 June 2020 so are
required to be applied retrospectively with cumulative effect applied initially on 1 July 2019.

In accordance with the changes, the Shire was required to remove the values attributable to certain crown land assets previously required to be
recognised, as well as the associated revaluation surplus at 1 July 2019, These assets have been measured as concessionary lease right-of-use
assets at zero cost in accordance with AASB 16. For further details relating to these changes, refer to Note 11.

In summary the following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position at the date of initial application
(1 July 2019):

Carrying amount Carrying amount
Note 30 June 2019 assification 01 July 2019
$ $ $
Revaluation surplus 1 73,178,329 0 73,178,329
Retained surplus 75,616,922 0 75,616,922
Also, following changes to Local Go! iment (Financial M. Regulation 17A, plant and equipment type assets (being plant and

equipment and furniture and equipment) are to be measured under the cost model, rather than at fair value. This change is effective from
1 July 2019 and represents a change in accounting policy. Revaluations carried out previously or during the year were reversed as it was
deemed fair value did not approximate cost at the date of the change and therefore the difference has been deemed to be impairment.

(b) Changes in equity due to change in accounting policies

The impact on the Shire's opening retained surplus due to the adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 as at 1 July 2019 was as follows:

Note Adjustments 2019
$

Retained surplus - 30 June 2019 75,616,922
Adjustment to retained surplus from adoption of AASB 15 26(a) 0 o]
Adjustment to retained surplus from adoption of AASB 1058 26(b) (1,020,599) (1,020,599)
Retained surplus - 1 July 2019 (1,020,599) 74,596,323

The impact on the Shire's opening revaluation surplus resulting from Local (Fi ial M. Regulation 16 being deleted and the
amendments to Local Go (Financial Manag ) Regulation 17A as at 1 July 2019 was nil.
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28. TRUST FUNDS

No funds held at balance date are required to be held in trust and therefore none are included in the
financial statements for 2019/2020.
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29. OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, sxpenses and assets are tecognised net of the amount of GST.
axcant where the amount of GST jncuired is not recovarable from the
Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Recewaties and payables are stated inclusive of GST recsivable or payable,
The netamount of GST recoverable from. or payable to, the ATC s ncluded
with racaivables or payables in the statemant of financial pesition.

Cash flows are presented on @ gross basis. The GST components of mésh
flows ansing from nvesting or financing activities which are recoverable from,
or payable to! the ATO are presented as operating cash flows.

b} Current and non-current classification

The asset or fiability is classified as current if it is expected to be settled
wehin the next 12'months, being the Shire’s operational cycle. In the case of
tabifties where the Shire does not have the unconditionat right to defer
settiement bayond 12 months, such as vested long service leave, the liability
is classified as current even if not expected to be sattled within the next 12
months. Inventories held for trading are classified as current or non-current:
based on the Shire's intentions to release for sale.

¢) Rounding off figures

Al figures shown in this annual financial report, other than a rate in the <lollar,

are raunded to the nearest dollar, Amounts are presented in Austraiian Dollars.

d) Comparative figures
Where required, comparative figures have been ad;usted to conform with
chang&s in presentation for the cun‘en! financial year

\When the Shire applies an accounting policy rettospectwely makesa
retrospective restatement or reclassifies items in its financial statements that

Jhas a material effect on the statement of financial position, an additional .
(third) statement of fi nancial posxﬂon as at the beginning of the prec 2

period in addition to the mmimum comparative financial statementsis

presemed

e) Budget comparative ﬂguras % (N AR
Unless otherwise stated, the budget cnmparahve ﬁgures shown in lhls annual
financial report relate to the ‘original budget estimate for the relevant item of
disclosure.

f) Superannuation =
The Shire contributes to.a number of Superannuaﬂon Funds on behalf tofsa
employees. All funds to which the Shire contributes are deﬁned comnbuﬁon

plans.

g) Fair value of assets and liabilities :

Fair value is the price that the Shire would receive to seil the asset or would
have to pay to transfer a liability, in an orderly (i.e. unforced} transaction
hetwsen independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the
measurement date.

As fair value is @ market-hased measure, the closest equivaient ocbsejvable
market pricing information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments to
market valugs may be made having regard to the characteristics of the
specific asset or liability. The fair vaiues of assets that are not traded inan
active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of ohservable
market data.

To the extent possible, market informaticn is extracted from either the
principal market for the asset or liability (i.e. the market with the greatest
valume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the absence of
such a market, the most advantageous market available to the entity at the
end of the reporting period (L.e. the market that maximises the receipts from
the sale of the asset after taking into account transactioh costs and
transport costs).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement aiso takes into account
a market participant’s ability 1o use the asset in its highest and best use or
to sell it to another market paiticipant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.
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) Fair value hierarchy

AASE 13 requites the discloswre of fair vaiue information by leved of the fair
valug hierarchy, which categorises fair value measuremen into ona of fhree
possible laveis based on the lowest level that an input tha! s significan o the
measurement can he categorised into as follows:

Level 1 ;
Measuremerts based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in acive matkats for
identical assets or habilities that the entity can atthe ment
date.

Level 2

Measurements based an inputs other than quoted prices included i Level {
that are observable for the asset or fiability, either directly o indirectiy.

Level 3
Measurements based on unobservable inputs forthe asset or iability.

The fair values of assets and liabiiities that are not traded inan active market
are determinad using one nr mare valuation techniques. These vaksation
techniques maximise, 1o the extent possible, the use of observable market
data: f all significant inputs required to measure fair value e observable, the
asset or liabiity is included in Level 2, If one or more signifcant inputs are not
based on observable market data, the asset or liability is induded in Level 3.

Valuation techniques

The Shire selects a valuation techmque that is appropnate inthe circumstances
and for which sufficient datais available to measure fair vaiue. The availability
of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics
of the asset or liability being measured, The valuation techniques selecied by
the Shire are consistent wﬁh one or more of the followmg valuation approaches:

Market appmach )
Valuation techniques that use prices and other re!evant ln!amanon
generated by market transactlons for ldemical or simnlaf assets or liabjlities.

Income approach
Valuation techniques that canvert estimated: 1ulure cash flaws or income

and expenses into a single discounted present value.

Cost approach
Valuation techniques that reflect the cun'ent replacement cost of the service

capacity of an asset il

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that
buyers and sellers would use when pricing the asset or liahilty, including
assumptions about risks. When selecting a vaiuation techrique, the Shire
gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of obseryable inputs
and minimise the use of unobsecvable inputs. Inputs that are developed using
market data (such as publicly available information on actual transactions) and
reflect the assumptions that buyers and seliers would generaliy use when
pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for
which market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best
information available about such assumptions are considered unobservable.

i) Impairment of assets

In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the Shire's cash generating
non-specialised assets, other than inventories, are assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication they may be impaired.

Where such an indication exists, an impainnent test is carried out on the
asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of
the asset’s fair value less costs o sell and value in use, tothe asset's
carrying amount.

Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is
recogoised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount in accordance with another Standard (e.g AASB 1186}
whereby any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation
decrease in accordance with that other Standard,

For non-cash generating specialised assets that are measured under the
revaluation model such as roads. drains, public buildings and the like, no
annual assessment of impairment is required. Rather AASB 116.31 applies
and revaluations need only be made with sufficient regulatory to ensure the
cafrying value does not differ matetiafly from that which would be determined
using fair value at the ends of the reporting period.
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30. ACTIVITIES/IPROGRAMS

Shire operations as disclosed in these financial statements encompass the following service orientated
activities/programs.

PROGRAM NAME AND OBJECTIVES ACTIVITIES

GOVERNANCE Administration and operation facilities and services to
members of Council. Other costs that relate to the tasks of
assisting members and ratepayers on matters which do not
concern specific council services.

GENERAL PURPOSE FUNDING Rates, general purpose government grants and interest
revenue.

LAW, ORDER, PUBLIC SAFETY Supervision of various laws, fire prevention, emergency
services and animal control.

HEALTH Food control, maintenance of child health clinics and health
administration and the retention of a full time doctor in
Laverton.

EDUCATION AND WELFARE Maintenance of pre-school facilities, day care centre,

donations to school, administration of the Cashless Debit Card
(CDC), assistance to welfare groups and the management of
the Youth Development Program.

HOUSING Provision of staff housing as well as private housing for the
retention of professionals in Laverton.

COMMUNITY AMENITIES Rubbish collection services, operation of rubbish tip site, noise
control, administration of town planning, operation of the

cemetery and operations & maintenance of public
conveniences.

RECREATION AND CULTURE Provision of public halls, swimming pool, recreational facilities,
various reserves, operation of library together with television
and radio re-broadcasting facilities.

TRANSPORT Construction and maintenance of roads, drainage, footpaths,

parking facilities, traffic signs, street cleaning and operation of
Laverton Airport.

ECONOMIC SERVICES Community development, tourism and area promotion,
heritage development and maintenance, Great Beyond Visitor
Centre & Explorers Hall of Fame, Community Resource
Centre and Building control.

OTHER PROPERTY AND SERVICES Private works, community bus, technical services,

administration, plant operations control and miscellaneous
services not able to be classified elsewhere.

oo
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31. FINANCIAL RATIOS 2020 2019 2018
Actual Actual Actual
Current ratio 1.04 0.46 3.88
Asset consumption ratio 0.86 0.86 0.86
Asset renewal funding ratio 0.70 0.26 0.27
Asset sustainability ratio 3.30 5.98 7.65
Debt service cover ratio 5.49 0.38 (11.26)
Operating surplus ratio (0.23) (0.44) (0.59)
Own source revenue coverage ratio 0.50 0.38 0.56
The above ratios are calculated as follows:
Current ratio current assets minus restricted assets
current liabilities minus liabilities associated
with restricted assets
Asset consumption ratio depreciated replacement costs of depreciable assets
current replacement cost of depreciable assets
Asset renewal funding ratio NPV of planned capital renewal over 10 years
NPV of required capital expenditure over 10 years
Asset sustainability ratio capital renewal and replacement expenditure
depreciation
Debt service cover ratio annual operating surplus before interest and depreciation

principal and interest

Operating surplus ratio operating revenue minus operating expenses
own source operating revenue

Own source revenue coverage ratio own source operating revenue
operating expense
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1.1 Purpose of the Audit Closing Report

The primary purpose of this Audit Closing Report is to brief the Shire of Laverton (Shire) on the results of our
substantially completed audit of the 30 June 2020 financial statements. This report should be read in conjunction with
our Audit Planning Memorandum (APM) provided to the Shire on 21 April 2020.

1.2  Scope and approach

Except for the additional audit work associated with the changes to the Local Govemment (Financial Management)
Regulations 1996 (Financial Management Regulations) and the Mt Weld Road upgrade project, there have been no
other changes to the audit scope or approach set out in the APM.

1.3  Key deliverables
1.3.1  Annual financial statements audit report

The Auditor General is required to issue an opinion on the financial statements of the Shire for the year ended 30 June
2020. In accordance with section 7.9(1) of the Local Government Act 1995 (LG Act), the audit report will be addressed
to the Mayor, with a copy being forwarded to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the Minister for Local Government.

We will recommend to the Auditor General that an unqualified audit opinion is issued on the financial statements with
an emphasis of matter paragraph regarding the significant cost overrun incurred on the Mt Weld Road upgrade project
(refer section 2.2).

1.3.2 Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
The Auditor General is also required by regulation 10(3) of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 to report:

= Any matters indicating non-compliance with Part 6 of the LG Act, the Financial Management Regulations or
applicable financial controls;

= Any material matters indicating significant adverse trends in the financial position or the financial management
practices;

= Whether all required information and explanations were obtained during the audit;
= Whether audit procedures were satisfactorily completed; and

= Whether the Asset Consumption Ratio and the Asset Renewal Funding Ratio, disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, were supported by verifiable information and reasonable assumptions.

During the audit we identified five matters that require reporting under regulation 10(3) of the Local Govemment (Audit)
Regulations 1996 (refer sections 2.3 and 2.5). We will recommend to the Auditor General that these matters are
mentioned in the audit report.

1.3.3 Management letters

Three significant findings were identified during the 2019/20 preliminary audit and one significant finding was carried
forward from the 2018/19 audit. (refer to section 2.4).

1.4  Matters of significance

In accordance with section 24(1) of the Auditor General Act 2006, the Auditor General is required to reportto Parliament
on matters arising out of the performance of the Auditor General’s functions that are, in the opinion of the Auditor
General, of such significance as to require reporting.

We confirm that no such matters came to our attention during our audit work.
1.5 COVID-19

We concur with the Shire's assessment that there is no significant impact on the financial statements or operations due
to the COVID-19 pandemic (refer section 6).

1.6 Independence

The audit methodology of RSM Australia requires that we conduct a regular evaluation of our independence. We have
fully satisfied ourselves that we do not have any actual or perceived conflict of interest.

1.7 Our appreciation

We wish to express our thanks for the co-operation shown by Council and the Shire's administration team during the
audit.
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21  Statutory financial statements and audit opinion

We have completed the audit fieldwork on the statutory financial statements of the Shire for the year ended 30 June
2020.

The financial statements are general purpose financial report prepared in accordance with the LG Act, accompanying
regulations and, to the extent that they are not inconsistent with the LG Act, Australian Accounting Standards.

We have discussed all significant auditing and accounting issues with Administration, and these have been satisfactorily
resolved and are discussed in this report. The audit and assurance procedures are designed to support the audit and
assurance opinions and they cannot be expected to identify all weaknesses or inefficiencies in the Shire's systems and
working practices.

Based on the evidence, which has been assessed during our audit, we expect to conclude that the financial statements
of the Shire:

() Are based on proper accounts and records; and

(if)y Fairly represent, in all material respects, the results of the operations of the Shire for the year ended 30 June 2020
and its financial position at the end of that period in accordance with the LG Act and, to the extent that they are not
inconsistent with the LG Act, Australian Accounting Standards.

We will recommend to the Auditor General that an unqualified opinion is issued on the financial statements,
2.2 Emphasis of matter

During the audit we identified the following matters, which will not require any modification to the audit opinion, but are
of such importance to require additional communication in the auditors’ report in the form of an Emphasis of Matter
paragraph:

2.21 Vested improvements on vested land

Note 9 to the financial statements describes the basis of accounting for vested improvements on vested land.
Regulation 17A of the Financial Management Regulations, requires the Shire to measure vested improvements at fair
value and the associated vested land at zero cost. This is a departure from AASB 16 Leases, which requires the Shire
to also measure vested improvements at zero cost.

2.2.2 Land underroads

Note 9 to the financial statements describes the basis of accounting for land under roads. In respect of the comparatives
for the previous year ended 30 June 2019, the former regulation 16 of the Financial Management Regulations did not
allow the Shire to recognise some categories of land, including land under roads, as assets in the financial statements.

2.2.3 Mt Weld Road upgrade project

Note 8(c) to the financial statements discloses the Shire's expenditure and cost overrun on the Mt Weld Road upgrade
project (Project). The Shire's procurement and contract management practices for the Project failed to control and
monitor cost overruns and provide sufficient oversight of the Project needed to address risks and ensure value for
money. These material control failures indicate significant non-compliance with Part 6 of the LG Act, the Financial
Management Regulations or applicable financial controls of any other written law.

The 2019720 preliminary audit management letter issued to the Shire provides details regarding this matter and the
recommendations to address the findings (refer section 2.4).

2.3 Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As disclosed in Note 31 of the financial statements, the following material matters indicate significant adverse trends in
the financial position of the Shire:

= The Asset Renewal Funding Ratio as reported is below the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural
Industries (DLGSC) standard for the last 3 financial years.

= The Operating Surplus Ratio as reported is below the DLGSC standard for the last 3 financial years.
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The following material matters, indicating non-compliance with Part 6 of the LG Act, the Financial Management
Regulations or applicable financial controls of any other written law, were identified during our audit:

= Approximately 40% of the sampled purchase orders were raised after the supplier invoice was received and no
documentation to explain why purchase orders were not raised before the procurement occurred. This practice
increases the likelihood of unauthorised expenditure occurring and going undetected.

= Approximately 20% of the sampled purchase transactions had inadequate or no evidence that a sufficient number
of quotations were obtained and no documentation to explain why other quotes were not sought. This practice
increases the likelihood of not receiving value for money in procurement and potential for bias in the supplier
selecting process.

= A review of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Shire’s financial management systems and procedures
was not completed. Regulation 5(2)(c) of the Financial Management Regulations requires a review to take place
at least once in every three financial years.

We will recommend to the Auditor General that these matters are communicated in the audit report.
2.4 Management letter — control weaknesses

Our audit approach involves the use of a rotation approach when planning our test of controls. Consequently, not all
control cycles are subject to testing and only certain transaction cycles are in audit scope each year. In accordance
with the APM, we performed key management control testing over the revenue, payment, cash, fixed assets transaction
cycles.

Based on our testing, the following control weaknesses were identified during the prior period audits, preliminary and
final audit stages:

2.4.1 Prior period audits

Eleven matters were reported during the prior year audit:

 Status

PR

{’F.inding‘s )

1. Fixed assets belw $5,000 7 B Significant Closed
2. Purchasing policy - obtaining quotations Significant Open

3. Review of credit card expenditure Significant Closed
4. General journals evidence of review Significant Closed
5. Changes to employee and supplier master files Significant Closed
6. Negative unrestricted cash position at year-end Significant Closed
7. Review of property values input into SynergySoft Moderate Open

8. Preparation and review of monthly bank reconciliations Moderate Closed
9. Review of open purchase orders Moderate Open
10. Cash float controls/cash handling processes Minor Open
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2.4.2 2019/20 preliminary audit
Three fi fndmgs were identified dunng the 2019/20 preliminary audit:

1. Assessment of new accounting standards AASB 15 and AASB 1058 Significant
2. Mt Weld Road upgrade project Significant
3. Purchase orders dated post invoice dates Significant

2.4.3 2019/20 final audit

No significant control weaknesses were identified during the 2019/20 final audit.

The action taken by the Shire to address the 2019/20 management letter findings will be reviewed during the 2020/21
audit.

2.5 Compliance with laws and regulations

We have reviewed the Shire’s controls to manage the risk of systemic failure to comply with relevant laws and
regulations. We also reviewed Council and other relevant committee minutes of meetings throughout the year to identify
any recorded non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

As aresult of our procedures, except for matters noted in section 2.3, nothing further has come to our attention, within
the scope of the audit, to indicate non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

2.6  Unadjusted audit differences
There were no unadjusted audit differences noted during the audit.
2.7  Summary of audit adjustments

Two audit adjustments were processed by the Shire during the course of the final audit:

b R e o)

Other House — Grant Income (revenue) 42,134

RoadC — Road construction mining contribution income (revenue) 839,476
Swim — Grants (revenue) 202,874
Accumulated surplus (equity) 678,736

Being the impact of adoption of the new revenue standard.

2 Loan liability — current 58,070
Loan liability — non-current 58,070

Being reclassification of loan balances to meet presentation
requirements.

2.8 Subsequent events

Administration has represented that, other than those matters disclosed in the financial statements, there are no
significant subsequent events between the end of the financial year and the date of this Audit Closing Report, which
may significantly impact the results of the operations and the state of affairs of the Shire for the financial year.
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2.9 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Administration has represented to us that, other than those matters disclosed in the financial statements, there are no
other outstanding or pending litigation, contingent liabilities or commitments.

2.10 Outstanding audit matters

The audit opinion is subject to the finalisation of our audit process. The key matters still outstanding are:
a) Our receipt of signed management representation letter:
b) Performing our subsequent events review: and

¢) Our performance of subsequent events review up to date the audit report is issued
3 NEWACCOUNTING STANDARD ADOPTED IN THE CURRENT YEAR
3.1 AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Shire adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers on 1 July 2019, which resulted in changes to
accounting policies. In accordance with the transition provisions of AASB 15, the Shire adopted the new rules
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying AASB 15 recognised as at 1 July 2019. Comparative
information for prior reporting periods was not restated in accordance with AASB 15 transition requirements.

As disclosed in the Note 26(a) to the financial statements, the impact of AASB 15 as at 1 July 2019 was not material.

We have audited the Shire’s application of the impact of adopting AASB 15 and we conclude that the Shire has correctly
applied the requirements and made appropriate disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

3.2 AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

The Shire adopted AASB 1058 Income for Not-for-Profit Entities on 1 July 2019, which resulted in changes to
accounting policies. In accordance with the transition provisions of AASB 1058, the Shire adopted the new rules
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying AASB 1058 recognised as at 1 July 2019. Comparative
information for prior reporting periods were not restated in accordance with AASB 1058 transition requirements.

As disclosed in the Note 26(b) to the financial statements, the impact of AASB 1058 as at 1 July 2019 was $1 ,020,599.

We have audited the Shire's application of the impact of the initial adoption of AASB 1058 and we conclude that the
Shire has correctly applied the requirements and made appropriate disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

3.3 AASB 16 Leases

The Shire adopted AASB 16 Leases on 1 July 2019, which resulted in changes to accounting policies. In accordance
with the transition provisions of AASB 16, the Shire has applied AASB 16 to its leases retrospectively, with effect from
1 July 2019. The Shire had no leases in place which required recognition on adoption of AASB 16.

AASB 16 requires vested land and vested improvements to be accounted for as a single lease component. In
accordance with the Financial Management Regulations, which take precedence over Australian Accounting
Standards, the Shire is required to measure vested improvements at fair value and the associated vested land at zero
cost. This is a departure from AASB 16, which requires the Shire to measure the vested improvements also at zero
cost.

We have audited the Shire's application of the impact of applying AASB 16 and we conclude that the Shire has correctly
applied the requirements and made appropriate disclosures in the notes to the financial statements, However, although
the Shire’s departure from AASB 16 will not result in a qualification to the audit report, there will be an Emphasis of
Matter paragraph included in the audit report to draw users' attention to this matter (refer section 2.2).
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i Al
EGULATIONS

Effective 6 November 2020, Financial Management Regulations were amended with regulation 16 being removed and
regulation 17A being amended with effect from 1 July 2019.

4.1 Impact of removal of regulation 16

The Shire is required to de-recognise the values attributable to certain crown land assets previously required to be
recognised as assets, as well as the associated revaluation surplus from 1 July 2019. These assets have been
measured as concessionary lease right-of-use assets at zero cost in accordance with AASB 16.

As disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements, there was no impact from the application of the removal as at 1
July 2019.

We have audited the Shire’s assessment of the impact of the removal of regulation 16 and we conclude that the Shire
has correctly addressed the requirements and made appropriate disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

4.2 Impact of amendment of regulation 17A

Plant and equipment type assets (being plant and equipment and furniture and equipment) are to be measured under
the cost model, rather than at fair value with effect from 1 July 2019. Revaluations carried out during the year were not
reversed as it was deemed fair value approximates cost model at the date of the change.

We have audited the Shire's assessment of the impact of applying amended regulation 17A and we conclude that the

Shire has correctly addressed the requirements and made appropriate disclosures in the notes to the financial
statements.

5 ARI
v MR

Hl

AS OF AUDIT EMPHASIS

As mentioned in the APM, our audit focus was on those areas where we assessed there to be a significant risk of
material misstatement in the financial statements. We designed and performed procedures to be able to conclude, with
reasonable assurance, whether each significant risk area is free from material misstatement. The following is a
summary of the significant risk balances for the past three financial years:

hé B 2Lt i e R B S L A
iLJm ﬁmm;g,\. area’ ’ ’D)E

R i iie ST P Pt PSR RO R .J.‘u» bt S

Revenue recognition

o Rates 5,303 4,648 3917

o Trade and other receivables 926 1,388 2,410

Procurement

e Materials and contracts 4,826 6,696 2,694
e Property, plant and equipment (additions) 518 4,452 2,009
o Infrastructure (additions) 9,235 12,280 14,861

Fixed assets

e Property, plant and equipment 13,866 14,938 11,774
e Infrastructure 139,888 133,339 124,063
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The outcome of our audit procedures for each high-risk material area is summarised in the following table:

‘High-risk area

11 Key risks

i

Free from
material = |
misstatement |

Revenue recognition Rates and Fees and charges revenue is material and is high-risk due to v
e Rates the multifaceted method of calculation, the high dependency on
Gruri information systems and the significant regulatory compliance regime.
L]
rants Compliance with AASB 15 and AASB 1058 can be complex and requires
e Trade and other detailed analysis of contracts and appropriate application of revenue
receivables recognition policies.
Calculation and recording of the expected credit loss provision in
accordance with AASB 9 Financial Instruments can be complex and is
subject to estimation.
Procurement These expenditure items are a significant risk due to the materiality of v
s Maoricls snd the amounts,. the different cost allocation .methoc_ls, the strict_ and
p— complex requirements of the Shire’s purchasing policy and the risk of
management override of controls.
e Property, plant and
equipment (additions)
e Infrastructure
(additions)
Fixed assets Property, plant and equipment and Infrastructure are material assets in v
the Statement of Financial Position.
e Property, plant and
equipment Revaluation of property, plant and equipment and other infrastructure is
subject to estimates and judgements, which can impact materially on
e |Infrastructure the carrying value.
Removal of regulation 16 and compliance with the new regulation 17A
of the Financial Management Regulations can be complex and require
some material adjustments to the carrying value of these assets and
associated asset revaluation reserves.

6 IMPACT OF COVID-19

As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to evolve, developments throughout 2020 have been causing great uncertainty
for the global economy. Whilst the initial effects were being felt most by the travel industry and education providers, the
impact is now considerably wider and is creating significant uncertainty for supply chains and the global economy. This
uncertainty is creating additional risks that entities may not have encountered before.

The Shire advised that the COVID-19 pandemic did not have any significant impacts during 2019/20. There were some
minor impacts on operations, including:

= Temporary closure of community services such as the Community Pool and Community Centers.

= Cancellation of various community events.
We concur with the Shire's assessment that there is no significant impact on its financial statements because of

COVID-19.

Shire of Laverton
Audit Closing Report
30 June 2020

Page |7



ATTACHMENT ARC270521.4.1.B
Page 10 of 12

7 OTHER CRITICAL DISCLOSURES IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We also audited the following critical disclosures in the financial statements by verifying the underlying calculations and
auditing the evidence to support the amounts disclosed:

Related party Disclosures of key management personnel v
remuneration and related party transactions are not in
accordance with AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures.

Financial ratios The underlying data is incomplete or inaccurate and the v
calculations of the ratios are incorrect and not in
accordance with Financial Management Regulations.

8 FRAUD RISK

Under Australian Auditing Standard ASA 240 The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of a Financial
Report, when planning and performing audit procedures and evaluating the results, the auditor must consider the risk
of material misstatement in the financial statements because of fraud and error. To address our responsibilities relating
to fraud, we designed and implemented audit procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures and the results of our testing are detailed below:

8.1 Management override of control

Administration is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of Administration's ability to manipulate accounting
records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating
effectively. Management override can occur in areas such as journal entries, accounting estimates and judgements.

Based on our work, nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the Shire does not have proper processes and
controls to manage the risk of management override of controls and that material key estimates and judgments are
properly assessed and brought to account. Our audit did not detect any instances of fraud.

8.2 Element of unpredictability

We also incorporated an element of unpredictability in our audit procedures to address the risk of Shire staff, who are
familiar with the normal audit procedures, being more able to conceal fraudulent activity.

Due to the risks of unauthorised transactions that may be associated with the use of corporate credit cards, our
unpredictable testing selected a sample of credit card transactions. We tested whether:

= The purchases are supported by appropriate documentation;
= The purchases were properly authorised; and
= The credit card transactions are reviewed and approved by Administration in a timely manner.

The elected members that make up the Shire’s Council cannot use these cards as the LG Act does not allow them to
incur debts. Instead, local governments pay allowances or reimburse expenses to an elected member.

During our audit work, nothing came to our attention to suggest the fraudulent use of corporate credit cards.
8.3  Fraud incidences during the audit

We have made enquiries of the Council, the CEO and Administration regarding whether they have knowledge of any
incidences of material fraud during the financial year. Based on our enquiries and other audit procedures, we did not
became aware of an incidence of misconduct or fraud, which would have a material impact on the financial statements.

9 NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS APPLICABLE IN FUTURE YEARS

There are no new accounting standards, which would materially impact the Shire's financial statements in future
financial years. We reviewed and concurred with the Shire’s disclosures in the notes to the financial statements
regarding new accounting standards.
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10 MATTERS RELATING TO FUTURE AUDIT

Based on our discussion with Administration, there are no matters that will be materially relevant for the 30 June 2021.
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Audit and Risk Committee Meeting — 27 May 2021 Confirmed Minutes

5. CLOSURE OF MEETING
The Presiding Person declared the meeting closed at 4:17pm.

6. CERTIFICATION OF MINUTES

I, Patrick Hill, hereby certify that the Minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee
Meeting held on 27 May 2021 are confirmed as a true and correct record, by
resolution of the m¢geting of the Audit and Risk Committee held on 24 June 2021

- 7 ,/I
M% DATED: ,?/4;/5/247,?/

SIGNED:

e

<

ARC270521 Confirmed Minutes
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